D I "'tt Chartered Accountants
e OI e Prestige Trade Tower, Level 19

ku 46, Palace Road, High Grounds
B luru-560 001
Haskins & SellsLLP Sengsluru 560

Tel: +91 80 6188 6000
Fax: +91 80 6188 6011

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

To The Members of Greaves Electric Mobility Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Greaves Electric Mobility Private
Limited (“the Parent”) and its subsidiaries, (the Parent and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the
Group”) which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 315t March, 2024, and the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date, and notes
to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act (*Ind AS") and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 315 March, 2024, and
their consolidated loss, their consolidated total comprehensive loss, their consolidated cash flows and
their consolidated changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing ("SAs”) specified under section 143 (10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI") together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated
financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

. The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board's report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements, standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

» Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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e 1In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

« If based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this

regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Parent’s Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other
comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in equity of the Group in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group
are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which
have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors
of the Parent Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and Board of Directors
of the companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the respective entities
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intend to liquidate
their respective entities or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect @ material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Parent Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

«» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

» Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of entities within the
Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
gualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work;
and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Parent Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal financial controls that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safequards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report, to the extent applicable
that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law maintained by the Group including relevant
records relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so
far as it appears from our examination of those books except for not complying with the requirement
of the audit trail as stated in (i)(vi).

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the Consolidated Statement
of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Parent Company as on
31st March 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company and the reports of the
statutory auditors of its subsidiaries, none of the directors of the Group incorporated in India is
disqualified as on 31stMarch, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of
the Act.

f) The modification/s relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith,
is/are as stated in paragraph (b) above.

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure A” which is based on the auditors’ reports of the Parent, subsidiaries incorporated in India.
Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of those companies.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the auditor’s reports of subsidiary companies incorporated in India, the remuneration paid
by the Parent Company, such subsidiaries to their respective directors during the year is in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group. Refer Note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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i)

The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts.

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund by the Parent, its subsidiaries incorporated in India.

iv) a) The respective Managements of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries which are

companies incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited under
the Act, have represented to us, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the note 5C to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources
or kind of funds) by the Parent Company or any of such subsidiaries to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Parent or any of such subsidiaries (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

b) The respective Managements of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries which are
companies incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited under
the Act, have represented to us, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in the note 5C to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have been received by
the Parent Company or any of such subsidiaries from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Parent Company or any of such subsidiaries shall,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances performed by us and those performed by the auditors
of the subsidiaries which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements
have been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our or other auditor’s notice that
has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule
11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v) The Parent, its subsidiaries which are companies incorporated in India, whose financial
statements have been audited under the Act, have not declared or paid any dividend during
the year and have not proposed final dividend for the year.

vi) Based on our examination, which included test checks, we report as follows;

a)

b)

The parent company and one subsidiary have used accounting software for maintaining
its books of account for the year ended 31st March 2024, which has a feature of recording
audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software except that audit trail was not enabled at the
database level to log any direct data changes.

One subsidiary has used accounting software for maintaining their respective books of
account for the financial year ended 31t March 2024 which is operated by a third-party
software service provider. In the absence of an independent auditor's service organisation
report covering the requirement of audit trail, we are unable to comment whether the
audit trail feature of the said software was enabled and operated throughout the year for
all relevant transactions, recorded in the software or whether there were any instances
of the audit trail feature been tampered with. (Refer Note 32 of the consolidated financial
statements).
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As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Compa
2023, reporting under Rule 11 (g) o
preservation of audit trail as per the statutory re

applicable for the year ended March 31, 2024.

2) With respect to the matters specified
Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order,
terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, accor

and based on the CARO reports issued by us and the au
in the consolidated financial statements to which reporting under CARO is applicable, as provided
to us by the Management of the Parent, we report that there are no qualifications or adverse
remarks by the respective auditors in the CARO reports of the said respective companies included
in the consolidated financial statements except for the following:

nies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1,
f the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on
quirements for record retention is not

in Clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 and paragraph 4 of the
2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government in
ding to the information and explanations given to us,
ditors of respective companies included

Name of the Company

CIN

Nature of
relationship

Clause Number of
CARO report with
qualification or
adverse remark

Greaves Electric Mobility
Private Limited

U51900TN2008PTC151470

Parent

(iii) (o), (iii)(e)

Bestway Agencies Private
Limited

U51909DL2004PTC124090

Subsidiary

(ix) (a)

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 3™ May 2024

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP

Chartered Accountants

(Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

CHARTERED

AGEOUNTANTS

oo Ttk

Krishna Prakash E
Partner
Membership No. 216015

UDIN: 24216015BKCPYV6330




Deloitte
Haskins & SellsLLP

ANNEXURE “"A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial statements
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Company as at and
for the year ended 315t March, 2024, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements of Greaves Electric Mobility Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as
“the Parent”), its subsidiary companies (the “"Group”) which includes internal financial controls with
reference to its subsidiaries which are companies incorporated in India which are companies
incorporated in India as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Parent, its subsidiaries, which are companies incorporated in
India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements based on the internal control with reference to consolidated financial
statements criteria established by the respective Companies considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI”). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements of the Parent, its subsidiaries which are companies incorporated in India, based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Parent’s internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial

statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us the Parent,
its subsidiary companies which are companies incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an
adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and such internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements were operating effectively as at
31st March, 2024, based on the “internal control with reference to consolidated financial statements
criteria established by the respective companies considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)
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JCOUHTANTS .
—%m COURT 5 Krishna Prakash E
X S %\3, Partner
ENGAY Membership No. 216015

UDIN: 24216015BKCPYV6330

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 3" May 2024



GREAVES ELECTRIC MOBILITY PRIVATE LIMITED
Consolidated balance sheet as at 31st March 2024
CIN:U51900TN2008PTC151470

(Rs. in Lakhs)

: Note As at As at
ol No. 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
ASSETS
| |Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3A 10,040 6,660
(b) Capital work-in-progress 3B 2,460 597
(c) Goodwill 9,374 1,715
(d) Other intangible assets 4A 7,762 3,464
(e) Right of use asset 5 2,217 1,926
(f) Intangible assets under development 4B 1,394 259
(g) Financial assets
(i) Investment 5A - 947
(ii) Loans 5C - 1,030
(iii} Other financial assets 5D 335 166
(h) Other non - current assets 6A 3,100 2,855
Total non-current assets (1) 36,682 19,619
Il |Current assets
(a) Inventories 7 6,955 6,098
(b) Financial assets
(i} Investments 5B 12,401 8,410
(ii) Trade receivables 8 160 287
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 9 1,191 5111
(iv) Bank balances other than (ii) above 10 5,000 45,000
(v) Other financial assets 5E 2,818 44,010
(c) Other current assets 6B 6,653 8,486
Total current assets (Il) 35,178 1,17,402
Total assets (1+l) 71,860 1,37,021
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
I |EQUITY
(a) Equity share capital 11 1,876 1,865
(b) Other equity 12A 39,321 1,06613
(c) Non Controlling Interest 12B 2,154 -
Total equity (1) 43,351 1,08,477
Il |LIABILITIES
1 |Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13A 27 -
(ii) Lease liabilities 14A 688 537
(iii) Other financial liabilities 14A 46 18
(b) Provisions 15A 337 166
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 18 1.116 214
Total non-current liabilities 2,214 935
2 |Current liabitities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13B 4,649 338
(i) Lease liabilities 14B 447 258
(iii) Trade payables
- Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 17 1,104 1,383
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 17 10,071 18,176
(iv) Other financial liabilities 14B 2,178 -
(b) Provisions 15B 4,263 3,798
(c) Other current liabilities 16 3.583 3.645
Total current liabilities 26,295 27,608
Total liabilities (1) : 28,509 28,544
Total equity and liabilities (I+11) 71,860 1,37,021
See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements 1-41

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018
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Date: 3rd May 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

\

Director
DIN : 00669376
Bengaluru

Chandrasekar Thyagarajan
Chief Financial Officer
Bengaluru

Kunnakdvil Vijaya Kumar

. 06630397
Bengaluru

N TIES

Vijayamahantesh Khannur
Company Secretary
Bengaluru




GREAVES ELECTRIC MOBILITY PRIVATE LIMITED
Consolidated statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31st March 2024
CIN:U51900TN2008PTC151470

(Rs. in Lakhs)
For the period For the year
Particulars Note ended ended
31st March 2024 | 31st March 2023
| Revenue from operations 19 61,182 1,12,432
Il |Otherincome 20 2,347 3.487
M |Total Income (I + 1) 64,129 1,15,919
Iv |Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 21 51,554 89,118
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 22 1,108 (2,068)
Employee benefits expense 23 10,136 6,793
Finance costs 24 821 963
Depreciation and amortisation expense 25 3,148 1,607
Other expenses 26 18,958 20.888
Total expenses (IV) 85,725 1,17,211
V  |Loss before exceptional item, share of loss of equity accounted investee and tax (lll-IV) (21,596) {1,292)
Vvl |Share of loss of equity accounted investee {90) (684)
Exceptional items (refer note 5E) (47,732) -
VIl |Loss before tax (V+VI) (69,418) (1,976)
VIl |Tax expense
Current tax 27 (14) 14
Deferred tax 27 (248) 3
IX |Loss after tax (VII-VIIl} (69,158) (1,993)
X |Other comprehensive income
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of employee defined benefit plans 0 85
Share of other comprehensive income of asscciate to the extent not to be reclassify to profit and - 2
loss
Income tax on above - -
Total other comprehensive income (X) 0 87
Xl |Total comprehensive income/{loss) for the year {IX + X) (69,158) (1,9086)
Profit / (loss) attributable to
Owners of the Company (68,059) (1,906)
Non-Controlling interest (1,089) -
Xl |Profit/ (loss) (69,158) (1.906)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to
COwners of the Company (68,059) (1,906)
Non-Controlling interest (1.099) -
Xill |Total compreh incomef{loss] {69.153' (1,806)
Earnings per equity share of face value of Rs 10/- each
Basic 29 (369.35) (10.69)
Diluted 29 (369.35) (10.69)
See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements 1-41

Date: 3rd May 2024 -

As per our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018
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Partner . Director
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Chief Financial Officer
Bengaluru

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Bengaluru

Vijayamiahantesh Khannur

Company Secretary
Bengaluru




GREAVES ELECTRIC MOBILITY PRIVATE LIMITED
Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 31st March 2024
CIN:U51900TN2008PTC 151470

Particulars

For the year ended
31st March 2024

For the year ended
31st March 2023

A. Cash flows from operating activities

Loss after tax (69,158) (1,993)
Adjusiments for:
Income tax expense (260) 17
Finance cosls 821 963
Inlerest income (1,9867) (3.054)
Net unrealised exchange loss/(gain) 14 -
Allowance for doubtful assets 100 88
Fair value change in iease liability - 156
Provision for subsidy 34,297 758
Inventory and assels written off 410 -
Loss of associate 90 684
Write off of financial assets 574 -
Allowance for doubtful advances and others 42 -
Amortisation of Global Innovation and Technology Alliance (GITA) - (6)
Employee stock options expense 566 577
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 3.148 1.507
Operating loss before working capital changes (31,323) (303)
Adjustment for movements in working capital:
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables 127 490
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (1,216) (732)
(Increase)/decrease in non-current/current - financial assets 6,130 (32,823)
(Increase)/decrease in non-current/current - non-financial assets 1,755 {2,637)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables (8.478) 7,120
Increase/(decrease) in provisions 896 2,073
Increase/(decrease) in non-current/current - financial liabilities 2,206 (1,908)
Increasef(decrease) in non-current/current - non-financial liabililies B40 482
Cash generated from operations (29,062) (28,2389)
Net income tax paid - -
Net cash flow used in operating activities (A) (29,062) (28,239)
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment (including capital advances) (6,484) (3,345)
Expenditure on intangible assets and intangibles under development (14,950) (2,949)
Inter corporate loans (placed)/repaid 1,030 (1,030}
Investment in mutual funds (3.991) (8,410)
Change in investments 4,110 -
Interest received 1,967 2,751
Balances considered in other bank balances 40.000 (44,992)
Net cash used in investing activities (B) 21,882 (57.975)
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of equity shares (including share premium)/Change in other equity 282 114112
or NC! A4,
Long term borrowings repaid during lhe period 27 (16,902)
Short term borrowings (repaid)/borrowed during the period (net) 4,310 (6,015)
Payment of lease liabilities (433) (1,117)
Finance costs (excluding interest on lease liability) {725) (809)
Net cash flow from financing activities (C) 3,460 89,170
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (3,920) 2,956
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 5111 2,155 |
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 1,191 5,111

As per our repart attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP

Chartared Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018
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GREAVES ELECTRIC MOBILITY PRIVATE LIMITED

Consolidated Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31st March 2024

CIN:U51300TN2008PTC 151470

a. Equity share capital

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Number of Shares|  Equity share
capital

Balance at 1st April 2022 1,17,19,163 1,172
Changes in equity share capital during the year 59.26.584 633
Balance at 31st March 2023 1,86,45,747 1,885
Changes in equily share capital during the year 117181 1
I at 31st March 2024 1,87,62,938 1,876

b. Other equity Items of other Nen Controlling
Reserves and surplus comprehensive Interest
income TOTAL
N Securities Retained Share based Actuarial Gain/ Retained
Particulars .
premium eamnings payment reserves (Loss) eamings
Balance as at 1st April 2022 6,635 {12,138) 46 17 - (5,474)
Securities premium on issue of equity shares 1,17,949 - - - - 1,17,949
Share issue expenses (4,531) - - - - (4.531)
Loss for the year - (1,993) - - - {1.993)
Cithar comprehensive income/(loss) (net of tax) - - - 85 - 85
Expense on employee/director stock option scheme - 577 - - 577
(net of reserve utilized)
Balance as at 31st March 2023 1,20,053 {14,131) 623 68 - 1,06,612
Adjustment during the year - - - - 3,253 3253
Share of loss for the year - (68,059) - - (1.083) (69,158)
On account of business combination - - - - - -
Sacurities premium on issue of equity shares 270 - - - 270
Oither comprehensive income/(loss) (net of tax) - - - 0 - 0
Expense on employee/director stock option scheme - - 498 - . 498
(net of reserve utilized)
Balance as at 31st March 2024 1,20,323 (82,120) 1,121 68 2,154 41,475

As per our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No, 117366W/W-100018

o Baaf”

Krishna Prakash E
Partner —

:eﬁ;;ls;ﬁf";w*‘"‘S%
g ¥
=]

GHARTERED
{ S\ accounTants
(i

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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Director
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Chandrasekar Thyagarajan Vijaya
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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GREAVES ELECTRIC MOBILITY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

CIN:U51900TN2008PTC151470

1. General Information:

Greaves Electric Mobility Private Limited ("the Company”) and it's subsidiaries (‘the Group”) is involved in
designing, developing, manufacturing & marketing electric and diesel vehicles. The company is private limited
company incorporated and domiciled in India. The company has two subsidiaries i.e. Bestway Agencies Private

Limited & MLR Auto Limited (Subsidiary weft from May 16, 2023).
The company is a subsidiary of Greaves Cotton Limited.
2. Summary of Material Accounting Policies

2.1 Statement of compliance:

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (ind
AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Section 133 of the

Companies Act, 2013.

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on May 03, 2024.

2.2, Basis of preparation and presentation:

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting

policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2, or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs
to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the

entity can access at the measurement date.
o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other that quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company:

=  Has power over the investee.
- Is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

= Has the ability to use its power'to affect its returns.

Consolidation of a subsidiaries begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiaries and ceases when
the Company loses control of the subsidiaries. Specifically, incomes and expenses of a subsidiaries acquired or
disposed off during the year are included in the consolidated statement of statement of profit and loss from the
date the Company gains control until the date when the Company ceases to control the subsidiaries.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries ta bring accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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GREAVES ELECTRIC MOBILITY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

CIN:U51900TN2008PTC151470

2.3. Revenue recognition:

Revenue is recognised when control of the goods, services are transferred to the customer at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services,
regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of
variable consideration), taking into account contractually defined terms of payment. The Group is the principal in
all of its revenue arrangements since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has pricing
latitude and is also exposed to inventory and credit risks. However, Goods and Services tax (GST) are not received
by the Company on its own account, Rather, it is tax collected on value added to the commodity by the seller on
behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when control of the goods is transferred to the Customers. Revenue in
respect of service is recognised in the accounting year in which the services are performed in accordance with the
terms of contract with customers. Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the
amount of transaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance obligation. The transaction
price of goods sold, and services rendered is net of variable consideration on account of various discounts and

schemes offered by the Company as part of the contract.

Interest income:

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefit will flow to the
group and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable.

2.4. Foreign currencies:

(i) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of the Group are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which these entities operate (i.e., the “functional currency”). The financial statements are presented
in INR, the national currency of India, which is the functional currency of the Group.

(if) Transaction and balances

Transactions in foreign currency are translated into the respective functiona! currencies using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the respective transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at the exchange rates prevailing at reporting date of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the statement of profit and loss
and reported within foreign exchange gains/ (losses). Also refer note 2.2.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and measured at historical cost are
translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of transaction. Foreign currency gains and losses are reported
on a net basis. This includes changes in the fair value of foreign exchange derivative instruments, which are

accounted at fair value through profit or loss.

2.5. Borrowing cost:

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are
capitalised as part of the cost of such assets till such time the asset is ready for its intended use or sale. A qualifying
asset is an asset that necessarily requires a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale. Al
other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the year in which they are incurred.

2.6. Government Grants and subsidies:

Government grants and subsidies are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant or subsidy
will be received, and all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant or subsidy relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended
to compensate, are expensed. When the grant or subsidy relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal
amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset




GREAVES ELECTRIC MOBILITY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

CIN:U51900TN2008PTC151470

2.7. Employee benefits:

Defined Contribution Plans:

The eligible employees of the Group are entitied to receive benefits under provident fund schemes defined
contribution plans, in which both employees and the Group make monthly contributions at a specified percentage
of the employees' salary. The contributions are paid to the respective Regional Provident Fund Commissioner and
the Central Provident Fund under the State Pension scheme. There are no other obligations other than the
contribution payable to the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner and the Central Provident Fund under the State

Pension scheme.
Defined Benefit Plans:

For defined benefit retirement plans (i.e., gratuity and ex-gratia) the cost of providing benefits is determined using
the projected unit credit method, with independent actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual
reporting period. Re-measurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset
ceiling and the return on plan assets (excluding interest), is reflected immediately in the statement of financial
position with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.

Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

e service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments
and settlements).

e netinterest expense or income; and

e re-measurement.

Compensated Absences:

Compensated absences which accrue to employees and which are expected to be availed within twelve months
immediately following the year end are reported as expenses during the year in which the employee performs the
service that the benefit covers and the liabilities are reported at the undiscounted amount of the benefit, and where
the availment or encashment is otherwise not expected to wholly occur within the next twelve months, the liability
on account of the benefit is actuarially determined using the projected unit credit method.

2.8. Share-based payment arrangements:

The stock options granted to employees pursuant to the Company’s Stock Options Schemes, are measured at the
fair value of the options at the grant date. The fair value of the options is treated as discount and accounted as
employee compensation cost over the vesting period on a straight line basis. The amount recognised as expense
in each year is arrived at based on the number of grants expected to vest. If a grant lapses after the vesting period,
the cumulative discount recognised as expense in respect of such grant is transferred to the General reserve within

equity.
2.9. Taxation:
Current tax:

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from "profit before tax” as
reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.




GREAVES ELECTRIC MOBILITY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to

be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting year.

The Group has not recognised deferred tax asset in view of the historical business losses.

Current and deferred tax for the year:

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in

other comprehensive income.

2.10. Property, plant and equipment:

Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost or its deemed cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any. Cost includes expenditures directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.

Cost includes inward freight, taxes and expenses incidental to acquisition and installation, up to the point the
asset is ready for its intended use.

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided under the straight-line method over the useful life of the assets. Leasehold
building improvements are written off over the period of lease or their estimated useful life, whichever is lower, on
a straight-line basis. Residual value of the assets is estimated at 5% of cost. The useful lives of the assets of the

Group are as follows:

Asset Useful lives
Leasehold improvements 2 -7 years

Pfant & machinery 10 - 15 years
Office equipment 5-10 years

When an asset is scrapped or otherwise disposed off, the cost and related depreciation are removed from the
books and the resultant profit or loss (including capital profit), if any, is reflected in the statement of profit and loss.

The estimated useful life and residual value is reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

2.11. Lease:

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for

consideration.

At the date of commencement of a lease, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset (‘ROU assets”) and a
corresponding lease liability for all leases, except for short term leases and low value leases. Certain lease
arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. Lease
payments to be made under such reasonably certain extension options are included in the measurement of ROU
assets and lease liabilities. ROU assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the asset's useful life or the

lease period whichever is shorter.

Lease liability is measured by discounting the lease payments using the interest rate of the incremental borrowing.
Lease liabilities are re-measured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset if the Group
changes its assessment of whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

Impairment of ROU assets is in accordance with the policy for impairment of non- financial assets.

The Group has opted for exemption provided under Ind AS 116 for short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets, hence the lease payments associated with those leases are treated as an expense on a straight-line bast

over the lease term.
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GREAVES ELECTRIC MOBILITY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
CIN:U51900TN2008PTC151470

2.12. Intangible assets:

Intangible assets acquired separately:

Own developed intangible assets are capitalised at actual cost. Cost includes all expenses incurred for
development of the intangible asset, up to the point the asset is ready for its intended use.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately or own developed are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and residual value is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Derecoghnition of intangible asset:

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss

when the asset is derecognised.
Useful life of intangible assets:

Estimated useful lives of the intangible assets are as follows:

Software 3- 5Syears
License/Approvals 3-10years
IP/Patents 5-10 Years
Brand 4 years

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill:

Property, Plant and equipment and intangible assets with finite life are evaluated for recoverability whenever there
is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount (i.e., higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset
basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In
such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash generating unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of

profit and loss.
2.13. Inventories:
Inventories are valued, after providing for obsolescence, as under:

* Raw materials, stores, spares, packing materials, loose tools and traded goods at FIFO/weighted average

cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower.
e  Work-in-progress at lower of weighted average cost including conversion cost or net realisable value,

whichever is lower.
o Finished goods at lower of weighted average cost including conversion cost or net realisable value,

whichever is lower.
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GREAVES ELECTRIC MOBILITY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
CIN:U51900TN2008PTC151470

2.14. Provisions:

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of

the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the

obligation.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third
party a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received, and the
amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

2.15. Warranties:

Provisions for the expected cost of warranty obligations are recognised at the date of sale of the relevant products,
at the management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the Group's obligation

2.16. Financial instrument:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately

in profit or loss.
Financial asset:

o Financial assets at amortised cost - Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost.
They are presented as current assets, except for those maturing later than 12 months after the reporting
date which are presented as noncurrent assets.

Financial assets are measured initially at fair value which usually represents cost plus transaction costs
and subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment loss
if any. Financial assets at amortised cost are represented by trade receivables, security and other
deposits, cash and cash equivalent, employee and other advances.

« Financial assets at Fair Value through Profit and loss (FVTPL) - Financial assets other than the equity
investments and investment classified as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL. These include surplus funds
invested in mutual funds etc.

o Impairment of financial assets - The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
‘loss event') and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Financial liabilities:

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost or at FVTPL. Financial liabilities such as derivative
that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument are classified as at FVTPL. Financial liabilities at
FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognized in the statement of
profit and loss. The net gain or loss recognised in the statement of profit and loss is included in the ‘other income /
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De-Recognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities:

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive benefits have expired or been transferred, and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of such financial asset. Financial liabilities
are derecognized when the liability is extinguished, that is when the contractual obligation is discharged, cancelled

or expires.
2.17. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:

s apresent obligation arising from a past event, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation

= a present obligation when no reliable estimate is possible, and

e a possible obligation, arising from past events where the probability of outflow of resources is not remote.

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date and updated / recognised as
appropriate.

2.18. Business Combinations

The Group accounts for its business combinations under acquisition method of accounting. The acquiree's
identifiable assets including goodwill, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the condition for recognition are
recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date. The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed is recognised as goodwill. Any shortfall is treated as a bargain purchase and recognised as
capital reserve. Before recognising gain in respect thereof, the Group determines whether there exists clear
evidence of underlying reasons for classifying the business combination as a bargain purchase. Thereafter, the
Group reassesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and
recognises any additional asset or liabilities that are identified in that reassessment.

The interest in noncontrolling interest is initially measured at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree's
identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis.
Subsequent to initial acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling interest is the amount of those interest in
initial recognition plus the non-controlling interest's share of subsequent changes in equity of subsidiaries.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to its acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss.
Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have previously been recognised
in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment would be appropriate if that

interest were disposed of.

In consolidated financial statements, acquisition of noncontrolling interest is accounted as equity transaction. The
carrying amount of the Group’s interests and the noncontrolling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the noncontrolling interests are
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to

owners of the Company.
2.19 Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief operating
decision maker. The Chief operating officer of the Parent has been identified as being the chief operating decision

maker.

2.20 Cash flow Statement
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Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of
Transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipt or payments
and item of income or expense associated with investing or financing cashflows. The cash flow from operating,

investing and financing activities of the group are segregated.
2.21 Earnings per share

The Group reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Ind AS 33 on Earnings per share. Basic
EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting
preference dividend and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during

the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects
of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of
the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. In computing the dilutive earnings per share, only potential
equity shares that are dilutive and that either reduces the earnings per share or increases loss per share are

included.
2.22 Operating cycle

Based on the nature of products / activities of the group and the normal time between acquisition of assets and
their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the group has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the
purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

2.23 Critical accounting judgements:

in the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in note 2, the management of the Group
are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

In the following areas the management of the Group has made critical judgements and estimates:

» Employee Benefits:

The present value of the defined benefit obligations depends on a number of factors that are determined
on an actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost
(income) for post employments plans include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions will
impact the carrying amount of such obligations.

The Group determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This is the interest rate that
should be used to determine the present value of estimated future cash outflows expected to be required
to settle the defined benefit obligations. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the Group considers
the interest rates of government bonds of maturity approximating the terms of the related plan liability.

e Useful lives of property, plant and equipment & intangible assets:

The Group reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment & intangible assets at the end of each
reporting period. This reassessment may result in change in depreciation expense in future periods.

¢ Provision for warranty:

The Group gives warranties for its products, undertaking to repair or replace the items that fail to perform
satisfactorily during the warranty period. Provision made at the year-end represents the amount of
expected cost of meeting such obligations of rectification / replacement. The timing of the outflows is
expected to be within a period of thirty-six months.
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Note 3A - Property, plant and equipment

ts for the year ended 31st March 2024

(Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars Pla.nt and C?fﬁce Furniture and Vehicles ) Leasehold Land Building on Building Total
equipment equipment fixtures improvements leasehoid
I. Cost
As at 1st April 2022 1,656 391 75 10 273 - 2,277 165 4,847
Additions 1,537 1,056 33 - 409 - 3,035
Disposals - - - - - - . ~ -
As at 31st March 2023 3,193 1,448 108 10 273 - 2,686 165 7,882
MLR as at 31st March 2023 785 55 4 5 - 287 - 462 1,599
Additions 1671 559 91 - 448 - 329 a1 3,139
Disposals 118 71 35 0 269 - - - 492
As at 31st March 2024 5,531 1,991 168 15 452 287 3.015 669 10,529
Il. Accumulated Depreciation
As at 1st April 2022 (183) (91) (13) (8) (273) 2 (78) 41 (687)
Charge for the year (192) (153) (1) (1) 0 - (163) (16) (535)
Disposals - . A - - - & - 1
As at 31st March 2023 (375) (244) (24) 9) (273) 2 (241) (57) (1,222)
MLR as at 31st March 2023 (331) (21) (1) (3) . . . (59) (415)
Charge for the year (358) (275) (13) 1 (18) - (182) (49) (893)
Disposails (89) (62) (22) - (269) - - - (442)
As at 31st March 2024 (974) (479) (15) (12) (19) - (424) {165) (2.973)
As at 31st March 2023 | 2,818 | 1,203 | 84 | | il - 2,445 | 108 | 5,660
As at 31st March 2024 | 4,557 | 1,513 | 153 | 2 | 433 | 287 | 2,592 | 503 | 10,040
Note 3B - Capital work-in-progress (CWIP) ageing schedule
CWIP ageing | (Rs. in Lakhs)
CWIP Amount in CWIP for the period of Total
Less than 1 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3
Year Years
Projects-in-progress
As at 31st March 2024 2,460 - - - 2,460
As at 31st March 2023 5897 - - - 597

There are no projects suspended as at 31st March 2024 and 31st March 2023. There are no projects which are overdue or have exceeded its initiai planned cost in current

and previous financial years.
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Note 4A - Intangible assets

Rs. in Lakhs)
License/ | Non-compete Product Computer Trademark/ | Distribution Total
Particulars Approvals fee development software Brand network /
workforce
I.Cost
As at 1st April 2022 149 200 107 321 1,266 157 2,200
Additions - 650 29 2,010 - 2,689
Disposals - - - - - - -
As at 31st March 2023 149 200 757 350 3,276 157 4,389
MLR as at 31st March 2023 - - 98 7 - - 105
Additions 16 1,325 1,429 68 3,236 - 6,073
Disposals - - 5 1 - - -]
As at 31st March 2024 165 1,526 2,279 424 6,512 157 11,061
Il. Accumulated Amortization
As at 1st April 2022 47) (76) (92) (94) (306) (60) (675)
Charge for the year (19) (82) (17) 60) (539) (34) (750)
Disposals - - - - - - =
As at 31st March 2023 (66) (158) (109) (154) (845) {94) {1,425)
MLR as at 31st March 2023 (14) 4) {19)
Charge for the year (14) (447) (244) (59) (1,062) (34) (1,860)
Disposals - = (5) - - - (5)
As at 31st March 2024 (80) (604) (362) (216) (1,906) {129) {3.298)
Carrying amount {)-ll)
As at 31st March 2023 83 42 648 196 2,431 63 3,464
As at 31st March 2024 84 920 1,917 208 4,605 28 7,762

Note 4B - Intangible assets under development ageing schedule

Intangible assets under d t ageing schedul (Rs. in Lakhs)
Intangibleassets underdevelopment Amount in intangible assets under Total
development for a period of
Less than 1 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3
Year Years

Projects-in-progress

As at 31st March 2024 1,394 - - - 1,394

As at 31st March 2023 259 - - - 258

There are no projects suspended as at 31st March 2024 and 31st March 2023. There are no projects which are averdue or have excaeded its initial planned cost in current

and previous financial years

Note 5 - Right of use asset

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars BoLE ROU - Land Total
Building

I. Cost

As at 1st April 2022 883 1,208 2,091
Additions 662 - 662
Disposals - - -

As at 31st March 2023 1,545 1,208 2,752
Additions 709 - 709
Disposals 8 - 8

As at 31st March 2024 2,246 1,208 3,453

Il. Accumulated Amortization

As at 1st April 2022 (597) (8) (605)
Additions (204) {17} (222

As at 31st March 2023 (801) {26) (827)
Charge for the year {392) (17) {409)

As at 31st March 2024 {1,193} (43) {1,236)

Carrying amount (I-1l)

As at 31st March 2023 744 1,182 1,926

As at 31st March 2024 1,053 1,165 2,217
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Note 5 - Other financial assets

{Unsecured and considered good - unless otherwise stated) (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
31st March 31st March
2024 2023
5A  |Non Current
Investment in associate
Equily instruments (at fair value)
Investment in MLR Auto Ltd (face value of Rs 10 each) - refer note below - 947
- 947
Aggregate carrying value of unquoted investments - non current - 947

Note - During the year ended 31st March 2024, the Company has acquired additional 25% stake in MLR Auto Limited for a consideration of Rs.1,505 lakh,
thereby MLR Auto Limited has become a subsidiary of the Company with effect from 16th May 2023

58 |Current
Investment in associate (fully paid
Investment in Mutual fund (at fair value through profit or. loss)

Kotak Overnight fund - 6,109
Kotak Overnight fund - 2,301
Aditya Birla Sun Life Liquid Fund - Growth 2,017 -
DSP Liquidity Fund - Institutional Plan - Growth 3,026 -
ICICI Prudential Liquid Fund - Growth 3,026 -
Nippon India Liquid Fund - Growth 2,025 -
Tata Liquid Fund - Growth 1.407 -
Aggregate carrying value of quoted investments - current 12,401 8,410
5C |Loans
Secured loans given to associate (refer note below) - 1.030
- 1,030

Note:

The Group has not given any advance or loan or invesled funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (intermediaries) with the

understanding that the Intermediary shali:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries, and,

The Group has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in
writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.




GREAVES ELECTRIC MOBILITY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024
CIN:U51900TN2008PTC151470

Particulars As at As at
31st March 31st March
2024 2023
5D |Non-current (Measured at amortised cost)
Security deposits 335 166
Loans and advances - 12
Less: Impairment loss allowance - (12)
335 166
S5E |Current
Subsidy receivable (Measured at amortised cost) 36,373 37,152
Less: Provision for doubtful recovery (2,548) (1,978)
Less: Exceptional ltem* (33,734) -
Subsidy receivable (Measured at amortised cost) 91 35174
Security deposits 41 40
Balances with govemment authorities
- GST Refund Receivable 1,837 8,281
- TDS Receivable 387 -
Receivable from related parties - (157) 213
Interest receivable on loans given to associate 160 -
Interest receivable on loans given to associate - 11
Interest accrued on fixed deposit 202 292
Others 258 -
Total 2,818 44,011

*During the year ended 31st March 2024, the Greaves Electric Mobility Private Limited received a notice from the MHI dated 25th May 2023 proposing to a. recover the
amount of subsidy paid to GEMPL since inception of the Scheme amounting to Rs. 12,491 lakhs along with interest thereon, b. cancel the claims pending with the MHI for
payment and c. deregister GEMPL from the Scheme. The Company submitted its response to the aforesaid notice within the prescribed timelines.

The Management believes that the Company has complied with the Scheme duly considering and supported by the legal advice obtained. However, keeping in mind the
interest of the consumers and without accepting any of the allegations, contentions, or statements in the notice and without prejudice, the Company, on 27th October
2023, offered to amicably resolve and put a quietus to the matter, and refunded an amount of Rs. 13,998 lakhs, towards subsidy reimbursed by the MHI to date (Rs.
12,491 lakhs) and interest thereon (Rs. 1,507 lakhs). The amount refunded and the subsidy receivable of Rs. 33,734 lakhs (net of provisions) have been provided for as
exceptional items in the Statement during the year ended 31st March 2024. The Company awaits confirmation from the MHI for taking the necessary steps to restore the

subsidy eligibility

Note 6 - Other assets

(Unsecured and considered good - unless otherwise stated) (Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
31st March 31st March
2024 2023
6A |Non-current
Balances with govemment authorities 781 898
Prepaid expenses 384 259
Advance income tax (net of provisions) 39 11
Capital advances 1,897 1,687
3,100 2,855
6B |Current
Advances to suppliers 940 578
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful advances (158) (117)
Net Amount 782 461
Prepaid expenses 242 154
GST Input tax credit 5,596 7,856
Other advances 33 15
6,653 8,486
Note 7 - Inventories
(Valued at lower of cost or net realisable valug) (Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars As at As at
31st March 31st March
2024 2023
Raw materials* 5,293 3472
Raw materials - Goods-in-transit - 226
Work-in-progress 255 84
Finished goods 1,420 2,315
6,968 6,098
Less: Provision for obsolete inventory (13) -
Total 6,955 6,098

* Net of inventory provision/write off of Rs 925 lakhs (for the year ended 31st March, 2022: Rs 1,147 lakhs)
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Note 8 - Trade receivables

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
31st March 31st March
2024 2023
Unsecured

Unsecured, considered good* 160 287
Trade receivables - credit impaired 1,190 585
Allowance for doubtful debts (expected credit loss allowance) (1.190) (585)
160 287

*The credit worthiness of trade receivables and the credit terms set are determined on a case to case basis. Considering internal and extemnal sources of information as

determined by the Management the overdue debtors were critically reviewed and necessary provisions has been provided.

Trade Receivables ageing schedule as at 31st March 2024

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars QOutstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Less than 6 | 6 months -1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
months year years

(i)  Undisputed trade receivables — considered good 114 4 24 2 16 160
(i)  Undisputed trade receivables — which have significant 8 44 34 14 - 100

increase in credit risk
(iiiy  Undisputed trade receivables — credit impaired - - - 28 478 505
(iv) Disputed trade receivables — considered good - - - - 585 585
(v) Disputed trade receivables — which have significant increase - - - - - -

in credit risk
(vi)  Disputed trade receivables — credit impaired - - - - - -

122 48 58 43 1,079 1,350

Trade Receivables ageing schedule as at 315t March 2023

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Less than 6 | 6 months -1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
months year years
(i) Undisputed trade receivables — considered good 199 73 15 - - 287
(i)  Undisputed trade receivables — which have significant - - - - - -
increase in credit risk
(i)  Undisputed trade receivables — credit impaired - - - - - -
(iv)  Disputed trade receivables — considered good - - - 175 410 585
(v)  Disputed trade receivables — which have significant increase - - - - - -
in credit risk
(vi)  Disputed trade receivables — credit impaired - - - - - -
199 73 15 175 410 872
Note 9 - Cash and cash equivalents (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
31st March 31st March
2024 2023
Balances with banks in current accounts 0 =
Unrestricted balances with banks
Balances with banks in current accounts 333 111
Term deposits with original maturity less than 3 months 858 5.000
Cash and cash equivalents considered for Cash Flow Statement 1,191 5.111
Note 10 - Other bank balances (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
31st March 31st March
2024 2023
Term deposits with original maturity exceeding 3 months and less than 12 months 5.000 45.000
5,000 45,000
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Note 11 - Equity share capital

Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Particulars No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
(in Rs. Lakhs) {in Rs. Lakhs)
{a) Authorised
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each with voling rights 3,17,74,000 3,177 3,17,74,000 3177
{b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each with voting rights 1,87,62,938 1,876 1,86,45,747 1,865
(c) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares
The Company has only one class of Equity Shares having a par value of Rs.10 each
(d) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
(in Rs. Lakhs) {in Rs. Lakhs)
(i) Equity shares of Rs. 10 each with voting rights
Balance as at the beginning of the year 1,86,45,747 1,865 1,17,19,163 1,172
Add: Issued during the year* 1,17,191 11 69.26,584 693
Balance as at the end of the year 1,87,62,938 1,876 1,86.45,747 1,865

* During the year ended 31st March 2024, the Company has allotted 1,17,191 equity shares of face value of Rs 10 each to one of the director under Employee

Stack Option Plan 2020 (Director) amounting to Rs, 282 lakhs

* During the year ended 31st March 2023, the Company has allotted 68,35,450 equity shares of face value Rs 10 each on a fully diluted basis to Abdul Latif
Jameel Green Mobility Solutions DMCC by way of preferential allotment through private placement basis for an overall share subscription consideration amount of
Rs. 117,081 lakhs. Further, Company has allolted 91,134 equity shares of face value of Rs.10 each to one of the independent director for Rs.1,561 lakhs against

cash consideration of Rs.780.5 Lakhs and against one time remuneration of an equal amount

e) Aggregate and class of shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to
| Aggregate number of shares
. As at As at
Particulars 3istMarch | 31stMarch
2024 2023
Equity sharas with voting nght
Fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash - 45,567

(f) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company and its holding company detéils

Class of shares / Name of shareholder As at As at
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
No. of Shares % holding No. of Shares % holding
{in lakhs) {in lakhs)
Equity Shares with voting rights
Greaves Cotton Limited and its nominees (Holding Company) 1,17,19,163 62 46% 1,17,19,163 62 85%
Abdul Lalif Jameel Green Mobilily Solutions DMCC 68,35,450 36.43% 68,35,450 36.66%
g) There are no promoters holdng in the equity shares of the Company.
Note 12A - Other equity
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
31st March 31st March
2024 2023
Securities premium (refer 12.a} 1,20,323 1,20,053
(Amounts received on issue of shares in excess of the par value has been classified as securities premium)
Retained eamings (refer 12.b) (82,180) (14,131)
(Retained earnings comprise of the Group's undistributed earnings after taxes)
Other comprehensive income (refer 12.c) 68 68
(Adjustmenls to other comprehensive income - pertaining to actuarial gains/(losses))
Share based payment reserve (refer 12.d) 1,121 623
(Represents value of equity settled share-based payments provided to employees and director)(refer note 35)
39,321 1,06.613
Note 12B - Non Controlling Interest
Particulars As at As at
31st March 31st March
2024 2023
Non Controlling Interest (refer 12.e}) 2,154
2,154 -
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(Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars

As at
31st March 2024

As at
31st March 2023

12.a Securities premium

Balance at beginning of year 1,20,053 6,635
Premium on issue of equity shares 270 1,17,949
Less: share issue expenses - {4.531)
Balance at end of year 1,20,323 1,20,053
12.b Retained earnings
Balance at beginning of year (14,131) (12,138)
Loss for the year (68.059) (1.993)
Balance at end of year {82,190) (14,131)
12.c Other comprehensive income
Balance at beginning of year 68 7
Add: Remeasurement of employee defined benefit plans during the year 0 85
Balance at end of year 68 68
12.d Share based payment reserve
Balance at beginning of year 623 46
Add: Expense on employee/director stock option scheme during the year (refer note 35) 547 577
Lees: Reserve utilised (49)
Balance at end of year 1,121 623
(Rs. in Lakhs)
As at As at

Particulars

31st March 2024

31st March 2023

12.e Non Controlling Interrest

Balance at beginning of year
Consolidation adjustments

Add: Share of Profit/(Loss) during the year
Balance at end of year

3,253
(1,099)
2,154

Note 13 - Borrowings
(at amortised cost)

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
31st March 2024

As at
31st March 2023

13A |Non-Current
Secured
Term loan from banks (refer note i below)

13B |Current

Secured

Loans repayable on demand from banks and NBFC (refer note ii below)
From Directors and Body Corporates* (refer note iii below)

27 -

27 -
382 338

4.267 -
4,649 338

Terms of borrowings:

p.a.). The loan is repayable in 96 months from the date of receipt of loan.

provide by the holding company i.e. Greaves Electric Mobility Private Limited.

1. The Group has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other any lender.

2. The Group has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any other lender.
3. The Group has used the borrowings from banks for the capital expenditures and working capital purposes.

4. The quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Group with banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of accounts.
5. The Group does not have any charges of satisfaction which is yet to registered with the ROC beyond the statutory period except for below :

(i) Bestway Agencies Private Limited has obtained unsecured loan from non-bank financial company (NBFC) i.e. Bajaj Finance Limited outstanding
amounting to INR 27.01 lakh as on March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023: INR 27.58 lakh) bearing interest rate of 19.50% p.a. (March 31, 2023: 19.50%

(i) Bestway Agencies Private Limited has cash credit facility from Kotak Mahindra bank amounting to Rs. 500.00 lakhs at interest rate 10.05% p.a. out of
which INR 381.87 lakh has been availed as at March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023 INR 310.86 lakh). These loans are secured by first and exclusive
hypothication charge on all existing and future current assets and moveable fixed assets. This cash credit facility is backed by corporate guarantee

(iy MLR Auto Limited has obtained an unsecured loan from erstwhile Directors and Body corporates during the year 31st March 2022 amounting to Rs
4,267 lakhs for purpose of working capital requirements.interest rate charged is SBI PLR fill 30th Apnil 2023 and 12.25% w.e.f 1st May, 2023 and
Terms of Repayment: Repayable at end of 3 years from date of agreement (i.e., repayable date is August 2024).

Brief description of the charge

Location of the

The period by which

Reason for delay in

Registrar such charge had to be [registration
registered
Holding Company - Borrowing Hyderabad 23-Aug-22 Delay in release of

original land

documents by TSIIC
P TR o

The inter company borrowings are eliminated on actount of consolidation of financial statements

/W\A
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Note 14 - Other financial liabilities

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
31st March 2024

As at
31st March 2023

14A |Non-current

Measured at amortised cost
Other financial liabilities - Lease liabilities

Measured at amortised cost

Interest accured, but not due on borrowings
Other financial liabilities - Global Innovation & Technology Alliance (GITA)

148 [Current

Measured at amorised cost
Other financial liabilities - Lease liabilities

Other financial liabilities

Measured at amortised cost

Interest accured, but not due on borrowings
Trade advances

Refundable deposits from customers
Employee benefit payable

Capital creditors

Other Payables

Measured at fair value

Derivate liability

688 537
688 537
46 .
- 18
46 18
447 258
447 258
1,166
375
211
219
59
147 -
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Note 15 - Provisions

Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
31st March | 31st March
2024 2023
15A |Non-current
Compensated absences 180 93
Gratuity 157 74
337 166
158 |Current
Compensated absences 101 50
Gratuity 19 5
Provision for warranty (Refer note below)} 4,064 3,691
Provision for GST {an stock reversal) 3 1
Provision for Other financial assets 35 -
Provision for sales tax assessment 42 51
4,263 3.798

Note: The Group gives wamanties for its products, undertaking to repair or replace the items that fail to perform salisfactorily during the warranty period. Provision made at the year end
represents the amount of expected cost of meeting such obligations of rectification / replacement based on the historical data available. The products are generally covered under a free wamranty
period ranging from 12 to 36 months. The movement in provision for warranty is as follows :

Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
31st March | 31st March

2024 2023

Opening balance 3,691 1,634
Provision recognised during the year 2,907 4,800

Amount reversed during the year (30) .
Amount ufilised / adjusments during the year (2.504) {2.843]
Closing balance 4,084 3,691

Note 16 - Other liabilities
Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
31st March | 31st March

2024 2023

Current

Advances from customers 1,369 1,024
Refundable deposits from customers 1,760 2,293
Balance payable to government authorities - statutory remittances 372 317
Others 82 11
3,583 3.645
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Note 17 - Trade payables

Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
31st March | 31st March
2024 2023
Due to Micro,Small and Medium enterprises (MSME) 1,104 1,393
Creditors other than Micro.Small and Medium enterprises (MSME) 10.071 18.176
11.175 19,569
Jrade Payables aging as at 31st March 2024 Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Unbilled Not due Outstanding for following periods from due date of Total
Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
year years
Undisputed Micro,Small and Medium enterprises . 533 520 51 - - 1,104
Undisputed - Other than MSME 2,637 2,095 4722 562 34 21 10,071
Disputed - Micro,Small and Medium enterprises (MSME) - - - .
Disputed - Other than MSME - - - - - - -
2,637 2,628 5,242 613 34 21 11,175
Trade Payables aging as at 31st March 23 Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Unbilled Not due Qutstanding for followin riods from due date of Total
Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
year years
Undisputed Micro,Small and Medium enterprises - 900 483 - - - 1,393
Undisputed - Other than MSME 5,466 3,899 8,694 77 23 17 18,176
Disputed - Micro,Small and Medium enterprises - - - - - .
Disputed - Other than MSME - - - - - - -
5,466 4,799 9,187 77 23 17 19,569
Rs. in Lakhs)
Note As at As at
31st March | 31st March
2024 2023
The Companies has centain dues to supoliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Devefopment Act, 2008 (MSMED Act). The disclosure|
pursuant to said MSMED Act are as follows: .
a) the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of Lhe accounting year; 1,104 1,393
b) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with U@
amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the accounting year; ‘ :
) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but
without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006; ) )
d) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year 94 43
&) lhe amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in lhe succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the
small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under seclion 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, - -
2006
Note 18 - Deferred tax
Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
31st March | 31st March
2024 2023
Analysis of deferred tax asstes / liabilities presented in the balance sheet:
Deferred tax assets - -
Deferred tax liabilities 1,118 214
Deferred tax asstes / liabilities {(net) 1,116 214
(Rs. in Lakhs}

Particulars

Balance sheet

Statement of

profit or loss

and Other Comprehensive
income/{loss)

As on As on As on As on
31st March | 31st March | 31st March | 31st March
2024 2023 2024 2023
Opening balance (214) (211) E. Z
Recognised in profit or loss
Provision for doubtful receivables - = - -
Defined benefit obligations - =
Provision for warranties = - - -
On account of consolidalion (902) 3} {246) 3
Provision for inventories - - - -
Other provisions - - - .
Recognised in other comprehensive income
Defined benefit obligations - a
{1,116} (214) (246) 3

L
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Ll

\% x/
'y N/




GREAVES ELECTRIC MOBILITY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024
CIN:U51900TN2008PTC151470

Note 19 - Revenue from operations

(Rs. in Lakhs)

For the year ended

Particulars For the year ended
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Revenue from sale of goods (Automative vehicles and parts)
- 2 Wheeler 43,218 1,05,279
- 3 Wheeler 17,766 6,964
Other operating revenue - scrap sales 187 189
61,182 1,12,432

The Companies believes that the below table best depicts the disaggregation of how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenues and cash flows
are affected. The Companies made sales mainly to the domestic customers during the year and previous year. Transaction price allocated to the remaining

performance obligations is within 1 year for both the years

There are no contracts for sale of goods wherein, performance obligation is unsatisfied to which transaction price has been allocated.

Disagrregation of revenue

(Rs. in Lakhs)

For the year ended
Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023

Revenue from sale of goods [including FAME subsidy of Rs.90.8 lakh for the year ended (Rs.35,622 Ilakh for 63.698 1.14.833
the year ended 31st March 2023)] ' .
Less: Incentives and schemes 2,713 2,590
Net revenue from sale of goods 60,985 1,12,243
Other operating revenue - scrap sales 197 189

61,182 1,12,432
Note 20 - Other income (Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

For the year ended
31st March 2024

For the year ended
31st March 2023

Interest income

31st March 2024

- From fixed deposits 1,867 3,003
- On loan given to associate - 51
Income from interim transit service - 316
Trade advance written off 375
Others 604 118
2,947 3,487
Note 21 - Cost of materials consumed (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Opening stock of raw materials 3,826 5,015
Purchases 52,612 87,781
Less: Closing stock of raw materials 4,884 3,678
51,554 89,118
Note 22 - Ch in inventories of finished goods, and work-in-progress (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended

31st March 2023

Inventories at the beginning of the year
Finished goods
Work-in-progress

Inventories at the end of the year
Finished goods
Work-in-progress

2,291 167

1286 182
2,418 349
1,154 2,313

155 104
1,309 2,417
1,108 (2,068)




GREAVES ELECTRIC MOBILITY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024
CIN:U51900TN2008PTC 151470

Note 23 - Employee benefits expense

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended

31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Salaries and wages* 9,154 6,205
Contribution to provident funds and other funds 438 230
Gratuity expense 104 68
Staff welfare expenses 440 290
10,136 6,793

*The amount of Rs 537 lakhs and Rs. 555 has accrued in salaries and wages for the year ended 31st March 2024 and 31st March 2023, respectively

towards share based payment to employees.

{a) Defined contribution plan

The Company makes Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance Scheme contributions which are defined contribution plans, for qualifying employees
Under the Schemes, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. The Company has recognised
Rs. 721 lakhs (for the year ended 31st March 2023: Rs 219 lakhs) as contribution to Provident Fund, and Rs, 2 lakhs (for the year ended 31st March 2023
Rs. 2 Lakhs) as payment under Employee State Insurance Scheme in the Statement of profit and loss. These contributions have been made at the rates

specified in the rules of the respective schemes and has been recognised in the Statement of profit and loss under the head Employee benefits expense.

(b) Defined benefit plans:
Gratuity

The Companies has not funded its gratuity obligations. The following table sets out the status of the defined benefit schemes and the amount recognised in

the financial statements as per the Actuarial Valuation done by an Independent Actuary.

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of defined benefit obligation

(Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
31st March 2024 31st March 2023

Defined Benefit Obligation at beginning of the year 81 121
Service cost (current + past) 97 60
Interest cost 7| 9
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss 8 (90)
Benefits paid (18) (20)
Defined benefit obligation at year end 175 81
Current 19 5
Non-current 157 74
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Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of fair value of plan assets

(Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
31st March 2024

As at
31st March 2023

Fair value of Plan Assets at beginning of year
Employer contributions

Expected Return on Plan Assets

Acluarial Gain / (Loss)

Benefits paid

Fair value of plan assets at year end

(18)

18

(20

20

(Rs in Lakhs)

Ex recognised during the year

Particulars

For the year ended
31st March 2024

For the year ended
31st March 2023

In Income Statement

Service cost 83 59
Interest on net defined benefit liability/ (asset) 22 9
Net Cost 104 68
In Other Comprehensive Income

Acluarial (Gain) / Loss (0) {102)
Net {Income)/ expense for the period recognised in OCI {0) {102)

The remeasurement of the net defined liability is included in olher comprehensive income,

Actuarial assumptions - Greaves Electric Mobility Private Limited

The current service cost and the net inlerest expense for the year are included in the ‘Employee benefits expense’ line ite:

m in the statement of profit and loss.

Particulars

For the year ended
31st March 2024

For the year ended
31st March 2023

Discount rate (per annum) 7.20% 7.30%
Rate of escalation in Salary (per annum) 9.00% 10.00%
Retirement age and attrition rate (per annum)
21-30 yrs 35.00% 35.00%
31-40 yrs 20.00% 20.00%
41-50 yrs 20.00% 20.00%
51-59 yrs 20.00% 20.00%.

Actuarial assumptions - Bestway Agencies Private Limited

For the year ended

Particulars For the year ended
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Discount rate (per annum) 7.30% 7.55%
Rate of lation in Salary (per annum) 9.00%)| 10.00%
Mortality rates Age ( years) Rates (p.a) Rates (p.a)
18 0.000874 0.000874
23 0.000836 0.000936
28 0.000942 0.000942
a3 0.001088 0.001088
38 0.001453 0.001453
43 0.002144 0.002144
48 0.0035386 0.003536
53 0.006174 0.006174
58 0.009651 0.009851
Actuarial assumptions - MLR Auto Limited
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Discount rate (per annum) 7.20% 7.30%
Rate of escalation in Salary (per annum) 7.00% 7.00%
Mortality rates Age ( years) Rates (p.a) Rates (p.a)
18 0.000874 0.000874
23 0,000936 0.000936
28 0.000942 0.000942
33 0.001086 0.001086
38 0.001453 0.001453
43 0.002144 0.002144
48 0.003536 0.003536
53 0.006174 0.006174
58 0.009651 0.009651

The retirement age of employees of the Companies is 60 years.

The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, takes into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors including
supply and demand in the employment market, The above information is certified by the actuary. The mortality rates considered are as per the published rates in the

Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) Ult table
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Sensitivity analysis

The key actuarial assumptions to which the defined benefit plans are particularly sensitive to are discount rate and full salary escalation rate. The sensitivity analysis
below, have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions

constant. The result of sensilivity analysis is given below:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Salary escalation

Particulars "
Discount rate
rate

As at 31st March 2024
Defined benefit obligation on plus 560 basis points 170 181
Defined benefit obligalion on minus 50 basis points 182 170
As at 31st March 2023
Defined benefit obligation on plus 50 basis points 75 81
Defined benefil obligation on minus 50 basis points 82 75

The sensitivity analysis presenied above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in

assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of lhe assumptions may be correlated.

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars L -
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Expected total benefit payments
1 year to 3 years 33 2
4 years to 5 years 68 3
6 years and above 213 691
Summary of experience adjustments (Rs. in Lakhs)
As at As at As at As at
31st March 2023 31st March 2023 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Defined benefit obligation at year end 175 79 121 91
Fair value of plan assets at year end - - - -
Net liability / (asset) 175 79 121 91
Experience adjustments 8 (90) (6) 2)
As at
31st March 2020

Defined benefit obligation at year end 63
Fair value of plan assets at year end -
Net liability / (asset) 863
Experience adjustments 22
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Note 24 - Finance costs

(Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Interest expenses 620 860
Interest on MSME 80 35
Interest expenses on lease liability 96 53
Other borrowing costs 25 15
821 963
Note 25 - Depreciation and amortisation exp (Rs in Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 881 535
Amortisation of intangible assets 1,858 751
Amortisation of right of use asset 409 221
3,148 1,507
Note 26 - Other expenses (Rs in Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Power and fuel 461 269
Repairs and maintenance
Machinery 80 29
Building 132 35
Others 687 472
Rent including lease rentals 147 98
Insurance charges 124 92
Inventory write off 359 -
Allowance for doubtful advances and others 42 -
Rates and taxes 200 105
Advertisement and sales promotion expenses 3,263 3,679
Travelling and conveyance 1,286 837
Carriage and freight 1,654 3,198
Royalty 224 282
Fair value change in lease liability - 156
Warranty expenses 2877 4,899
Legal and other professional costs 3,120 3,630
Share based payment to director 28 21
Net loss on foreign currency transactions and translation 14 0
Auditors remuneration and out-of-pocket expenses (refer note below) 64 47
Contracting expenses 2,047 1,726
Research expenses 411 331
Allowance for doubtful assets 100 88
Provision for subsidy 563 759
Write off of financial assets 574 -
Fixed asset written off 52 -
Miscellarieous expenses 450 144
18,958 20,898

Particulars

For the year ended
31st March 2024

For the year ended
31st March 2023

Auditors remuneration and out-of-pocket expenses include

Statutory audit fees 41 29
Limited Review 12 10
Tax audit 2 2
Group audit fee 7 5
Out of pocket expenses 2 1

64 47

Note 27 - Tax expense

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

31st March 2024 31st March 2023

Current tax

In respect of the current year (14) 14

Deferred tax (246) 3

Total income tax expense recognised in the current year (260) 17

The reconciliation between the provision of income tax of the Group and amounts computed by applying the

Indian statutory income tax rate to profit before taxes is as follows:

Current Tax:

Loss before tax (69,158) (1,993)

Enacted income tax rate 2517% 2517%

Tax on parent company profit net of utilization of unabsorbed depreciation and other temporary differences - 14

Computed expected tax expense = -

Reversal of excess provision (14) -

Income tax expense recognised in the profit or loss (14) 14

Deferred Tax:

Relating to the origination and reversatl of temporary differences (246) 3

Tax expense reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss 0D~ (260) 17

The Group has not recognised deferred tax asset in view of the historical business losses and in,
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Note 28 - Segment reporting

The Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) of the company examines the performance from the perspective of Group as a whole viz. ‘Automative

Vehicles and Parts' and hence there are no separate reportable segments as per Ind AS 108

Note 29 - Earnings per share

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31st Mar 2024 31st Mar 2023

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders - for Basic and Diluted EPS (Rs in Lakhs) (69,158) (1,993)
Weighted Average number of Equity Shares used as denominator for calculating Basic EPS 1,87,24,195 1,86,45,747
Weighted Average Potential Equity Shares 3,83,800 6,12,319
Weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share 1,91,07,995 1,92,58,066
Earnings per share of Rs 10/-
- Basic (in Rs) (369.35) (10.69)
- Diluted (in Rs) (369.35) (10.69)

Note: Potential equity shares for the year ended 31st March 2024 and 31st March 2023 have not been considered, since these are anti-dilutive in nature

Note 30 - Contingent liabilities and commitments

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
31st March 2024

As at
31st March 2023

Contingent Liabilities
Claims against the group / disputed liabilities not acknowledged as debts

- Goods and service tax* 1,767 -

- Customs Duty™* 12,888 387

- Other matters 697 74
500 -

Corporate Guarantee

*“The Group has evaluated the above off balance sheet exposure duly considering the legal advice obtained and believes that the Respective Company

has a strong case and is confident of succeeding in its appeals / defense.

**The Greaves Electric Mobility Private Limited received an order-in-original dated 27th January 2024 from the Commissioner of Customs, Chennai
assessing the imports of parts for manufacture of electric scooters between 2018 to 2021 as import of Complete Knock Down (CKD) kits.The assessable
value of the parts considered for the incremental charge of duty is Rs.16,601 lakhs and the differential duty levied is Rs.5,644 lakhs, plus applicable interest

and penalties thereon.

The Company believes that it has a good case on merits before the Appellate Tribunal since the impugned order has been passed without appreciating the
submissions made by the company in its reply dated 25th September 2023 and during the personal hearing on 8th November 2023.The Company is in the
process of filing an appeal before the Appellate Tribunal on or before the due date of 17th May 2024.

Particulars

As at
31st March 2024

As at
31st March 2023

Il. Capital Commitment

2,222

182
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Note 31 - Financial instruments

31.1 Capital management
The group manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the returns to stakeholders

31.2 Categories of financial instruments
The significant accounting policies in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument including criteria for their recognition,
the basis of measurement are as disclosed in Note No.5, 8, 9, 10, 13, 14 & 17 to the financial statements. These notes also mention the basis on which the

income & expenses are recognised,

{Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value
Financial assets
Measured at amortised cost
Investments - - 949 -
Others financial assets - non current 335 - 166 -
Loans - - 1,030 -
Trade receivables 160 - 287 -
Cash and cash equivalents 1,191 - 5111 -
Other bank balances 5,000 - 45,000 -
Others financial assets - current 2,818 - 44.010
Total financial assets measured at 9,504 - 96,554 -
amortised cost (a)
Mandatorily measured at FVTPL
Investments in mutual funds - 12,401 - 8,410
Others financial assets - current - - - -
- 12,401 - 8,410
Total financial assets {a + b) 9,504 12,401 96,554 8,410

Financial liabilities
Measured at amortised cost

Borrowings 4,676 - 338 -
Trade payables 11,175 - 19,569 -
Others financial liabilities - current 2,624 - 258

Others financial liabitities - non current 734 - 555 -
Total financial assets measured at 19,209 - 20,720 -
amortised cost (a)

Mandatorily measured at FVTPL

Others financial liabilities - non current - - - -
(b)

Total financial liabilities (a + b) 19,209 - 20,720 -

The management assessed that fair values of cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables, other financial assets, trade payables
and other financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost is considered to be a reasonable approximation of fair value.
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31.3 Financial and liquidity risk management objectives :

i) The group has a policy of investing surplus funds in fixed deposits with bank, liquid and overnight funds
iiy The average payment terms of creditors (trade payables) is in the range of 30-45 days. in case of MSMED creditors the payment terms are within 45 days

Other financial liabilities viz. employee payments, dealer deposits are payable within one year.

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks. The Group's primary focus is to foresee the unpredictability of such risks and seek to minimize
potential adverse effects on its financial performance

The Group has a risk management process in place, coordinated by the Board, to review risks as well as the progress against the planned actions. The Board
seeks to identify, evaluate business risks and challenges across the Group through such framework. These risks include market risks, credit risk and liquidity

risk.

Risk Exposure arising from Risk management
Market risk - foreign exchange Import purchases, and recognised financial assets and|Periodic review by management
liabilities not denominated in Indian rupees
Market risk - interest rate Borrowings at variable rates Mix of borrowings taken at fixed and floating rates
Credit risk Cash and cash equivalents, trade receivabies, derivative|Bank deposits, diversification of asset base, credit
financial instruments and other financial assets limits and collateral.
Liquidity risk Borrowings and other liabilities Availabllity of committed credit lines and borrowing

Market risk - price risk
The Group is exposed to fluctuations in foreign currency arising foreign currency transactions on purchase of raw materials, primarily with respect to UsD.

Foreign exchange risk arises from recognised assets and liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the Group's functional currency. Exposures to foreign
currency balances are periodically reviewed to ensure that the results from fluctuating currency exchange rates are appropriately managed. The Group does not
enter into or trade financial instruments including derivative financial instruments, for speculative purposes.

(i) Foreign currency risk

Financial assets Financial liabilities
. Advances
Particulars Outstanding Trade Payables
INR Lakhs INR Lakhs
EURO - 6
UsD 14 1
CNY (PY) (11) =
USD (PY) (564) =
In Foreign Currency | In Foreign Currency
EURO - -
usp 0 0
CNY (PY) [(0)] E
UsD (PY) (7 -

(Previous year figures are in brackets)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rales arises mainly from forgign currency denominated financial instruments

31st March 2024 31st March 2023
FX Sensitivity
INR increase by 5% 0 29
INR decrease by 5% (0) (29)

Market risk - interest rate

(i} Liabilities:

The Group’s policy is to minimise interest rate cash flow risk exposures on long-term financing. At 31st March 2024, the Group is exposed to changes in market
interest rates through bank borrowings at variable interest rates.

{ii) Assets:

The Group's financial assets are carried at amortised cost and are at fixed rate. They are, therefore, not subject to interest rate risk since neither the carrying
amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates,

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to perform or pay amounts due to the group causing financial loss. It arises

from cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks and financial institutions, security deposits, loans given and principally from credit exposures to customers
relating to outstanding receivables. The group’s maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amount of financial assets recognised at reporting

date,

In respect of trade and other receivables, the group is not exposed to any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any company of
counterparties having similar characteristics. Credit risk on receivables is limited as the nature of the business is advance driven. The group has very limited
history of customer default, and considers the credit quality of trade receivables that are not past due or impaired to be good.

Therefore, the group does not expect any material risk on account of non performance by any of the group’s counterparties. The credit risk for cash and cash
equivalents, bank deposits, security deposits and loans is considered negligible.
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Liquidity risk

The Group requires funds both for short-term operational needs as well as for long-term expansion programs. The Group remains committed to maintaining a
healthy liquidity ratio, deleveraging and strengthening the balance sheet. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate support of facilities from its
banking partners, and by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. The
Group’s treasury department is responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement management. In addition, processes and policies related to such risks are
overseen by senior management. The Group's financial liability is represented significantly by long term and short term borrowings from banks, related parties

and trade payables.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as at 31st March 2024 and 31st March 2023

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at Less than 1 1-2 years 2 years and TOTAL
year above
Borrowings 31st March 2024 4,676 - - 4,676
31st March 2023 338 - - 338
Trade payables 31st March 2024 11,175 - - 11,175
31st March 2023 19,569 - - 19,569
Other financial liabilities (including iease 31st March 2024 2,624 684 50 3,358
liabilities)
31st March 2023 258 390 165 813

Capital management
The Group's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the

business. The Group monitors the return on capital. The Company's objective when managing capital is to maintain an optimal structure so as to maximize
shareholder value.

The capital structure is as follows: (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars 31st March, 31st March,
2024 2023
43,351 1,08,477

Total equity attributable to the equity share holders

As percentage of total capital 90% 100%

Current borrowings 4,649 338

Non-current borrowings 27 -
4,676 339

Total borrowings
As a percentage of total capital 10% 0%
Total capital (borrowings and equity) 48,027 1,08,817

Interest rate risk
interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates, The

Group's exposure ta the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group's debt obligations with floating interest rates and investments.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis
If interest rates had been 1% higher and all other variables were held constant, the Group's profit for the year ended would have impacted in the following

manner:

(Rs. in Lakhs)
. 31st March,
Particulars 31st March, 2024 2023
Increase in losses for the year 101 82

If interest rates were 1% lower, the Group loss would have decreased by the equivalent amount as shown in the above table.
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32 - Audit Trail & Backup

(i) Greaves Electrice Mobility Private Limited and Bestway Agencies Private Limited has used SAP ("accounting software") for maintaining its books of account
for the year ended March 31, 2024, which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
fransactions recorded in the software except that audit trail feature was not enabled at the database level to log any direct data changes.

(i) MLR Auto Limited:
a. Audit Trail - As per the proviso to Rule 3(1) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, for the financial year commencing on or after the 1st day of April

2023, every company which uses accounting software for maintaining its books of account, shall use only such accounting software which has a feature of
recording audit trail of each and every transaction, creating an edit log of each change made in the books of account along with the date when such changes
were made and ensuring that the audit trail cannot be disabled.
The Company used TCS iON as its accounting software which is operated by a third party software service provider for recording all the accounting
transactions viz., sales, purchases, production/costing, fixed assets, payroll, other expenses, cash and bank transactions, journal entries and all other general
ledger accounting transactions for the year ended March 31, 2024. The audit trail feature of such software was not fully enabled throughout the year. The
Management has adequate manual controls and certain IT controls viz., access controls for critical master data which are operating, to prevent
inappropriate/unauthorized changes to the books of account, The Management will work towards enabling edit logs in the aforesaid software in the near future.
b. Audit Backup - The Companies (Accounts) Amendments Rules 2022, with effect from August 05, 2022, mandate that the back-up of the books of
account and other books and papers of the Company maintained in electronic mode including at a place outside India, shall be kept in servers physically
located in India on a daily basis. The Company has maintained daily back-ups of such books of accounts in servers physically located in India. However, there
were no evidence available to demonstrate that back-up of such books was maintained on daily basis in severs physically located in India.

33 Acquisition of subsidiary

During the year, in accordance with the share purchase agreement dated 13th August 2021, Greaves Electric Mobility Private Limited has acquired, as part of
the second tranche acquisition, 1,26,20,522 shares of Rs 10 each and 2,42,94,749 share of Rs 1 each in MLR Auto Limited Limited for a consideration of
Rs.1,505 lakhs, Consequent to this acquisition, shareholding of Greave Electric Mobility Private Limited in MLR Auto Limited stands at 51.00% as at 31 March

2024,

(a) The fair values of assets and liabilities recognised as a result of the acquisition are as follows:

Particulars {Rs. in Lakhs)
Fixed assets 1,260
Cash and cash equivalent 198
Non-compete Agreemient 1,325
Trademark / Brand 3,236
Working capital (1,648)
Deffered Tax Liability (1,148)
Borrowings (5,267
Fair value of net asset/(liabilities) acquired (2,044)
(b) Calculation of Goodwill:

Particulars {Rs. in Lakhs)
Purchase Consideration 1,505
Non-controlling Interest 3,253
Fair value of previous investment in MLR Auto Limited 857
Fair Value of net assets and liabilities acquired (2.044)
Goodwill on acquisition 7,659
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34 - Related party disclosures
Name of the relaled parties and nalure of relalionship

a} Holding Com

Greaves Colton Limited (GCL)

([b] Entities exercising significant influence

Abdul Lalif Jamesl Green Mobdity Solutions DMCC (ALJ)

(c) Associate

MLR Auto Limiled (tll 15th May 2023)

(d) Fellow Subsidiaries

Greaves Finance Limfed

Greaves Technologies Limited
Greaves Technaologies Inc

Exce! Controlinkage Private Limited

(e) Key Management Personnel (KMP}

Karan Thapar (Direclor)

Kowal Kundanlal Handa (Direclor) (Till Sth April 2023)

Nagesh Basavanhalli (Direclor)

Venkataraman| Sumaniran (Director)

Sanjay Kumar Behl {Director and CEG) (Till 15th Cclober 2023)
Sanjay Kurnar Behl (CEQ) (from 16lh Oclober 2023)
Mohammad Arshi Abrar Khan (Direclor)

Tavilysn Yudhislira Rusli {Direclor}

Chandrasekar Thyagaraan (CFO)

Shivani Pradeep Chopra (CS} (Till 4th Augusl 2023)

Raja Venkataraman (Director) (From 20ih April 2023)

Atindra Nath Basu (Direclor) (From 151h October 2023)
Jnyanthl Yeshwanl Kumar (Director) (From 27th Seplember 2023)
ijayamanantesh Khannur(CS) (From 7ih August 2023)

Algk Kapoor (Director) (upte 27th December 2023)

Mirmal Nollamkandath Rajanarayanan (Direclor)

[Naveen Sharma (Direclor)

‘Sundeep R. Chhabra (Direclor)

Jatindra Dighe (MLR CFO)

Hunnakavil Vijaya Kumar(Executive Direclor and CEO)(from 3rd
April 2024)

(e) Enterprises owned or significantly by Key F

Calens Technologies Privale Limided
Celeris Technologies LLP

The following table summarises related-party transactions and balances for the year ended / as at 31st March 2024 & for the year ended / as at 31st March 2023

(Previous year ligures are in brackets) (Rs. in Lakhs)
Nature of transaction Holding Entities KMP Enterprises as | Enterprises as | Enlerprises as Associate Total
Company exercising defined in defined in defined in -MLR
-GCL significant point (d) above| point (d) above| point {e) above
influence -GTL - GFL
-ALJ
Transactions during the year -
Managerial remuneration - - 870 - - - 870
- (208) - = - : (208)
Sitting fees . - 7 : - - - 1
- . 7 . . . . 7
Sale of goods 1612 - - - - - - 1612
Purchase of goods 2,298 - - . 2,298
Repayment of financial liability - - - - -
(1,880) - . - . {1.980)
Receipt of services 976 - 415 - - 1.391
(547) . - (481) . (2.538) (18) (3.584)
Interesl expense - - - = 111 . e, 111
Capital assels purchase (including intangibles) 9 - - - - -]
(2,010) - - . (2,010)
Receipl of loan - - - - - .
Loan given - - - - - - -
. - - B - - (1,030) (1.030)
Repayment of loan - - - - - B - -
Repaymenl of Interest - - - B - - -
Fresh issue of shares for cash - - 270 - 270
(1,551) (1,17,081) (780) - - (1.19,412)
Share based payment to direclor - - - -
- - (780) (780)
Receipl of non-refundable deposit - - - -
Invesimenl in associale a - - 1,505 1,505
Royalty 225 - 225
(288) - + i (288)
Interest on loan given - - - 14 14
- = » = (683) (663)
Share of loss of equity accounted inveslee - - - - 90 80
- - - - (884) (884)
Share of other compr income of to the extent not lo
be reclassify to profit and foss N : B
= - . = @ [va]
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(Pravious year figures are in brackets) (Rs. in Lakhs)
Nature of transaction Holding Entities KMP Enterprises as | Enterprises as | Enterprises as Associate Total
Company exercising defined in defined in defined in -MLR
-GCL significant point (d) above | point {d) above | point {e) above
influence -GTL - GFL
-ALJ
Balance as on balance sheet date
Other financial assels - - - - - .
(68) . ] (131) (199)
Trade payables and ather financial liabililies 220 | ; - - - 220
) ®7) - ©8)
Margin money non-refundable deposit - - - - .
Loans given - - - .
Carrying value of inveslment in associate - - - -
- 3 947) (947)
i. There is no allowance account lor impaired receivables in relation lo any and no has been in respecl of impai due from relaled parties.

ii. Related party relationship is as idenlified by the Group on the basis of informalion available wilh the Group and relied upon by the Audilors.
iii. No amount is/has been written off or written back during the year in respect of debis due from or to related party.

iv. The above transaclions are compiled from the dale lhese parties became relaled which are accounted in the naiural head of accounls.
v. All fransactions with relaled parlies are conducted al arm’s lenglh price under normal terms of business.
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35 - Leases

The Group has entered into operaling lease arrangements for cerlain units. The leases are cancellable and range between period of 12 o 84 months and are renewable based on mulual

agreement of the parlies
The Group has applied a single discount rale to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characterislics

The Group has treated the leases with the lease lerm of less than 12 months as shorl lerm leases. The Group has not applied the requirements of Ind AS 116 for leases of low value assets
The Group has used hindsighl, in determining the lease term if lhe contract contains options to exlend or lerminate the lease

Disclosure as per the requirement of Ind AS 116

Amounts recognised in balance sheet

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at

31st March 2024 | 31st March 2023
Righl-of-use assels 2217 1,926
Lease Liabilities
Current 447 258
Mon-current 688 537
A g d in the 1t of profit and loss

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at

31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Depraciation chamge of nght-of-use assels 409 221
Interest expenses on lease fiabilty {Included in finance costs) a6 53
|Expense relating 1o short term lease not included in lease liabilities 147 98
The lable below provides details regarding the coniractual maturities of lease liabilities as al 31st March 2024 on an undiscounted basis:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at

31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Nol later than 1 year 529 320
Laler than 1 year and not laler than 5 years 748 600
Later than 5 vears - -
Total undiscounted lease liabilities 1,277 920

e

The Group does nol face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meel the obligations relaled lo lease liabilities as and when lhey fall due.

36 Financial mtios

Ratio / Measure |{Methodology For the year | For the year ended Change Remarks
ended March 31, 2023
March 31, 2024

Current ralio Current assets over current liabilities 1.3 43 -69% On account of provision made againsi
subsidy receivable and increase in|
operaling loss during the year

Debt equity ratio Debt over total shareholders' equity 01 0.0 1250% On-account of decrease in other equity
due lo subsidy provision

Debt service coverage ratio Profit before taxes over dabt (26.1) 0.0 -62395% On accounl of provision made againsl
subsidy receivable and increase in
operating loss during the year

Retum on equity % Profit after laxes over total average equily -3693.5% -112.1% 3185% On account of provision made against
subsidy receivable and increase in

loss during the year

Inventory tumover ralio Adjusted cosl of goods sold over average inventory 8.1 15.2 -47% On account of lower purchases made
due to reduced volume of business

Trade receivables {urnover ratio Revenue from operations over average trade 2734 2112 29% Due to lower sales made to dealers|

receivables during the year.

Trade payables lurnover ralio Adjusted purchases over trade payables 51 56 -9% On accounl of lower purchases made
due to decline in business offset by
beller payment cycle lo lhe vendor.

Net capital tumover ratio Revenue from operations over average working 69 1.3 430% On accounl of provision made against

capilal subsidy receivable and  lower]
purchases made during the year

Net profit % Profil after taxes over revenue -113.0% -1.8% 6278% On account of provision made against
subsidy receivable and increase in
operaling loss during the year

Retumn on capilal employed % PBIT over average capilal employed -143 0% -16% 8839% On accounl of provision made against|
subsidy receivable and increase in
operating loss during lhe year

Notes:
PBIT - Profil before interesl and taxes
Capital employed refers to total shareholders' equily and debt
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37 Employee stock option plan(ESOP)

Summary of Status of ESOPs Granted
The position of the existing schemes is summarized as under -

Sl Particulars

No.

Employee Stock
Option Plan 2020

Employee Stock
Option Plan 2020

Employee Stock
Option Plan 2022

(Director) {Executive director
and CEOQ)
I. Details of the ESOP
1 |Date of shareholder's approval Approved on Approved on Approved on
December 31, 2020 |December 31, 2020 |June 1,2022
2 |Total number of options approved 1,75,787 2,92,979 2,34,383
3 |Vesting requirements Time based vesting |Time and Time and Performance
Requirements Performance based |based vesting
vesting Requirements

4 |Exercise price or pricing formula (Rs.)

5 |Maximum term of options granted (years)
6 |Source of shares

7 |Date of grant

8 |Method of setlement

9 |Variation in terms of ESOP

At discount to FMV
as per independent
valuer's Report

8 years

Primary issuance
8th January 2021
Equity

Nil

Requirements

At FMV as per
independent valuer's
report

8 years

Primary issuance
8th January 2021
Equity

Nil

At discount to FMV as
per independent
valuer's Report

8 years

Primary issuance

1st June 2022

Equity

Nil

Il. Option Movement during the year

(Director) Employee
Stock Option Plan
2020

Employee Stock
Option Plan 2020

Employee Stock
Option Plan 2022

No. of options outstanding at the beginning of the year

Options granted during the year

Options forfeited / lapsed during the year

Options vested during the year

Options exercised during the year

Total number of shares arising as a result of exercise of options
Money realised by exercise of options (Rs.)

Number of options outstanding at the end of the year

Number of options exercisable at the end of the year

WO~ WN=

1,75,787

117,191

2,02,149

1,11,328

2,34,383

2,34,383

Weighted average exercise price of options granted during the year

Weighted average fair value of options granted during the year

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

[The weighted average market price of options exercised during the year |

NA

NA

NA

Method and Assumptions used to estimate the fair value of options granted:
The fair value has been caiculated using the Black Scholes Option Pricing model

The Assumptions used in the model are as follows:

Date of grant

Grant 1

Grant 2

Grant 3

1. Risk Free Interest Rate
2. Expected Life

3. Expected Volatility

4. Dividend Yield

5.32%
527
17.97%
0.00%

5.33%
5.51
17.91%
0.00%

7.14%
526

25.08%

0.00%

Expense on Employees Stock Option Scheme debited to Profit and
Loss during the FY 2023-24 (in lakhs)

565

Expense on Employee Stock Option Scheme debited to Profit and
Loss during the FY 2022-23 (in lakhs)

577
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38, Additional Regulatory Information

1.The group have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virlual Currency during the financial year.

2.No sch of arrang ts have been applied or approved by the Competent Aulhorily in terms of section 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013.

3.The litle deeds of all immovable properties, (other than immovable properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of
the Company) disclosed in the financial statemenls included in propery, plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress are held in the name of the group as at the
balance sheet date.

4. The group does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.

5.The group have no such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961)

6.The group does not have any transactions with struck off companies.

39. Additional information as required by Paragraph 2 of the General Instructions for Preparation of consolidated Ind AS financial statements to Schedule lll to

the Companies Act, 2013

Name of the entity Net assets on Share of Profit or Loss on | Share of Comprehensive loss Share of Total Comprehensive|
Consolidated Consolidated profit or loss on Consolidated loss on Consolidated profit or
net assets profit or loss loss
% (Rs. in Lakhs) % (Rs. in Lakhs) % (Rs. in Lakhs) % (Rs. in Lakhs)
Parent
Greaves Eleclric Mobility Private 114% 49,389 94% (64,863) 93% 0 94% (64.863)
Limited
Indian Subsidiary
Bestway Agencies Private Limited -13% (5.435) 2% (1,558) 1886% 8 2% (1,550)
MLR Auto Ltd -1% (603) 4% (2,646) -1879% (8) 4% (2,655)
Associate
MLR Auto Ltd - - 0% (90) - - 0% (90)
Total 100% 43,351 100% (69.158) 100% 0 100% (69,158,
40, Change in liabilities arising from financing activities
Particulars 1st April 2023 | Proceeds / Addition/ Fair value 31st March
impact of IND | (Repayment) changes 2024
AS 116
Borrowings from banks and others 338 - 4,338 - 4,676
{non-current and current)
|Lease liabilities 795 678 (434) 96 1,135
Total 1,133 678 3,904 96 5,811
Particulars 1st April 2022 | Proceeds / Repayment Fair value 31st March
impact of IND changes 2023
AS 116
Borrowings from banks and others 23,256 - (22,918) - 338
(non-current and current)
Lease liabililies 1.042 662 (1.117) 209 795
Total 24,298 662 (24,035) 208 1,133

he realisable value of all current assets of the Group and has confirmed that the value of such assets in the ordinary course of
cial statements. In addition, the Board has also confirmed the carmying value of the non-
he relevant disclosures made, has approved these financial statements in its meeting

41. The Board of Directors has reviewed |
business will not be less than the value at which these are recognized in the finan
current assets in the financial statements. The Board, duly taking into account all
held on May 03, 2024.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

vil Vijaya Kumar
liva Director and CEO

Director

DIN : 00669376 - 06630397
Bengaluru Bengaluru

Lo

Chandrasekar Thyagarajan
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Bengaluru Bengaluru

Date: 3rd May 2024




